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Mal<ueni County Statc and Public Of{iccrs Car loan and Mortgage Fuud
Aunual llepo rt antl Financial Statcments lbr thc ycar cndcd June 30,2023

1. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

a) Acronvms

lloNf

ICPAK

]PSAS

PFM

PSASl}

I(shs

lr)

Board of Managemcnt

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of I(enya

International Public Scctor Accounting Standarcls

Public Irinance Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

I(enya Shillings

()lossary <>f Terms Fiduciary Management
The key managemcnt personnel rvho had financial responsibiliq,

lll



Makueni County Statc and Public Officcrs Car lontr aud Mortgagc Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statcmcnts for the year cnded June 30,2023

2. Key Entity Information and Management

a. Backgroundinformation

Ir{akueni County Assembly Car and N{ortgage Fund is established by and derives its authority and

accountability from The Public Finance Management Makueni County State and Public Officers Car
[-oan and Mortgagc {und llrytktions, 2017.T\e Fund is wholly owned by thc Countl, Government of
Makueni and is domiciled in I(enya.

The fund's objective is to disburse Car and N{ortgage fund to State Officers and ensure accountability
and proper use of public funds.

The Fund's principal activity is to manage all funds disbursed fi'om the County Treasury to the Fund.

The County Assembly as constituted as per the c()nstitution of Keni'a is headed by the Speaker of the

County Asscmbly, rvho is responsiblc for the gcncral policy and strategic direction of the Assemb\,.
The County Assembly constitutes 49 ir{embers of County Assembly CMCA, elected to represent

members of the public from their rcspective wards. The MCAs are responsible for making an1'laws

foe effective performancc of the County Government, approving plans and policies and playing the

oversight rolc over the C<-runty Ilxecutive.

b. Principal Activities

I'he pincipal actiaiS, / ntitsion / ntandate of theFtnd is loAdunce loans lo slale (frert andpablic ojicers it accotdance

ilth tbe PFll'l tlet 2012.

Board of Trustees/Fund Administration Committecc

1
HON KYALO MUMO Chairperson

2 HONJADES KALUNDA

-1
HON KENNEDY MANENO Committee Membcr

Committce Mcmbcr4 HONJACKLINE MUTHINI
Fund Manager/ Administrator5 MR KE,VIN N{UTUKU

d. Key Management Steam

I MR KEV1N MUTUKU Fund Manager/ Administrator

2 MR ITRANCIS MAITITA Fund Accountant

3

4

5

lv

tlc f N;tIrtc Positi<rtr

Committee Member

llcf N:rrr re Pos ition



Mal<ucui County Statc and I'}ublic Officcrs Car loan and Mortgagc Fund
Annual l{clrort and ! inancial Statcmeuts lbr the ycar endcd Juue 30 ,2023

Key Entity and Management (Continued)

e. Fiduciary OversightArrangements

Huz, proride a high leuel deseiption of tbe kelfdtciary oaersigltt anangenents coreting (sa1)

f. Rcgistered Offices

P.O. llox 512-90300
Off Vote - I\{akindu Ilighway
Iiormcr Defunct County Council Office
Opposite IVakueni County Building IIead<luarter
Makueni, KENYA

g. Fund Contacts

Telephone: 07 31663505 / 0202393005

E-mail: info@makucnicountyassembly.go.ke

Wcbsite: w*rv.makueniassembly. go. ke

Fund Bankers

Ccntral Bank of l(eny'a
Haile Selassie Avcnuc
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, I(cni,a

h

2 Family Bank
Wote Branch

3. Rafiki Bank-Vote Brancll

I Dircctorate Internal Audit Nathan I(ilonzo

2 Staff car Mortgage and car [-oan Advisory

Committee

Makueni Counry Assembly Car and Mortgage

fund Committee.

3

Key Entity and Managcment (Continucd)

I

SN Position Narrrc
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Makueui County State and Prrblic Officers Car loan and l\,Iortgage Fund
Aunual Rcport aud Financial Statcntents for the year endcd June 30, 2023

3. Board of Trustees/ Fund Administration Committee

1. Hon. Douglas I\{bilu Speaker County Assembly / Chair County Assembly
Service Board. Over 8 Years experience with the County
Government of Makueni (served as ECM water and chief
of staff).

Serving his second tcrm as the Speaker of the County
Assembly.

2. Hon. Jusrus Muema Vice chair Board/ MCA I(iima I(iu ward

Serving his first term as a member of the County
Assembly.

3.Hon. El.izabeth Kawembe Member board/ MCA Muvau ward

Serving her second term as the members of Assembly

4. Mr. Joseph Kimilu External Member Board

Over 20 years as an electrical engineer

vll
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Makueni County State and Prrblic OfficeI's Car loan and Mortgage Fund
Aunual Rcport and Financial Statemcnts for the year cnded Juue 30, 2023

5. N{iss. E stcr Muoti External Member Board.

Over 10 as a secondary school teacher

(r. Mr. Kevin Mutuku Clerk County Assembly/ Secretary Board'

Over 7 Years working with the County Assembly, served as

the Clerk for over 3 years.

vlll
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Makueni County State and Public Officers Car loan aud Mortgagc Fund
Anlrual Ileport nnd l'inancial Statcnrents lbr thc ycar cndcd June 30, 2023

4. Managemcnt Tearn

OVER 7 YI]ARS \flORKING \flITII TIIE
COUNTY GOVI]RNMENT. SE,RVING I{IS
SECOND TERM AS A MEMBER OF TIIE
COUNTY ASSEMBLY.

MAJORITY LEADER

2. IION K]]NNEDY MANENO MEMBI]R OF THI] COUNTY ASSI]N{BI,Y

SIIRVING IIIS I]IRST TERM.

3. HONJACKLINE MUTHINI ME,MBER OIT THE, COUNTY ASSI].MBI,Y

SERVING ItIlR FIRST TI]RM.

4. MRKEVIN MUTUKU ADMINISTRATOR OF THE, FUND

Over 3 years as the Administrator of the Irund.

Note: The Fund Adninishator willfealsre under both the Boanl' and 'Managemert'.

lx

Namc L)e t:rils of 11u:rliIications rrrrtl rrl'cricncc

1. HON KYAI-O MUMO
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County State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage Fund
rt aud Financial Statcments lbr thc ear ended June 30, 2023

/Fund Chaitperson's Report

e year there was no change in the lund managcment team and the performance of the fund
as they were able to disburse car loans and mortgages to the N{embers of the County
during the financial year.

outlook of the fund is promising depcnding on the financing of the fund by the County
so as to be able to advance all members and staff rcqucsts on time and adequatell,

to thank all thc management tcam and the technical staff who worked overboard to enable
of thc fund and ensure prudence in the use and aclministration of public Funds.

.K:li=v..1{,..u'1Q... sig.,"tu,....hH..... o",...i:lt:+lxa<

of the Board/Fund
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Mal<ucni Courrty State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage F'und
Anrrual lLcport and Fiuancial Statcnrents for the year ended June 30, 2023

6. Report of The Fund Administrator

.\'ec/ion I 64 of tbe Prblic Finance Afanagenenl Acl 201 2 reqniret tbat at lhe ud of eachfrunciallear, the Aceonnting
Oficers /or a Counlt Gouernntent enlij shall prepare l:inancial .ftalentenk h retput to tbe entig inforntats prucibed
@'l'he Pfulic .\'eclor Aceoanling .f landadt Board and stbnit lhe enli j\fnancial statennnls pitbin 3 nontbs at tbe
end of each fnancial lear to lbe A,lditor General pilb copies deliuered lo tbe (ounj'I-reasury, Conholler of Badget
anrl Conntistion on Reuenae Al/ocaliort.

Tberc pas tulue for nonel fu nanagenrcnl o/ tbe fail at it belped lbe bnefciaries iatprute their' liting iandards l1t
purchasing cars and hoases.

'[he fund dning the fnancial yar 2022/2023 bad a budger of Kshs 223,640,604. (Atakreni Coantl
Assentbj had bdgeledfor Kshs 103,916,604 in itt I;\' 2022/ 2023 Bud,gel ubile Kshs 119,724,000 nas
budgeled ander the Connj Exuatiue Bulget. Tbe tolal fudget n,as Kshs 223,640,604.)

Dning lbelear lbeJand expericnced loan delalt vbih proccssittg nnrtgage applicalions nainll drc to tong cbarying oJ
title dudt to be co-owned b1 tbe Comj Assenb! and the loan applieanl to ucare the properjt against ary diqovl.

xl



Makueni County Statc antl Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage Fund
Anrrual Report and F'inancial Statements for the year cnded Junc 30,2023

7. Statement of Performance Against the County Fund's Predetermined Obiectives

Intoduction

Section 164 (2) (D of the Public Iiinancc Management Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of each

financial year, the accounting officer when preparing financial statements of each Countl, Government
entity Government entities in accordancc with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public
Sector Accounting Stanclards Board includes a statement of the counq.' government entiq/s
performance against predetermined objectives.

The key development objectives of the Fund as per the stratcgic plan for 2021-2025 xc to:

-To provide quality physical infrastructure in the Counry'Assembly

-To ensure all staff have access to mortgage facilitie s

-To enable staff access mortgage facilit.ies within the shortness period

Progress on attainment of Strategic development obiectives

Bclow we rovide thc ss on attalnln the stated ob cc trvcs

Provision of
Mortgage
facilities to all
members of staff
and Hon
Members.

To ensure all staff
have access to
Mortgage
facilities

39 Number
mortSages
successfully
applied

81oh of staff
taking Mortgage
facilities

During FY 39
Members of
staff accessed
the facility and
wetc able build
their own
houses

Provision of Car
Loan facilities
to all members
of staff and Hon
Members.

To ensure all staff
have access to
Car Loan
facilities

1 1 Number of
Car loans applied

22okMemberc
were accessed cat
loan facility.

Duting FY 11

Members of
staff accessed
the facility and
rvere purchased
cars.

xll
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Mal<ucni County Statc and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage Fund
Anrrual llcport and l.'inancial Statenrcnts for the ycar cnded June 30, 2023

8. Corporate Governance Statement

During the financial yca:. 2022 / 2023 the committee held rwo training to familiarize itself with its
roles and mandate. Mcn-rbers were also trained on the PFN{ Act Guidelincs on how to safcguard the
public funds while discharging their roles.

Thc role of thc committee is to rcccive car and mortgage applications from Nlembers of the Counq,
Asscmbly as wcll as thc staff and scrutinize them to chcck whether all required documents and
proccdures arc f<rllowcd before disbursements ()F funcls is made to the bcneficiarics.

The committee also ensures that monthly deductions are done for all beneficiaries and the same
deposited in the funds bank account for it to kecp on revolving and growing to benefit other
mcmbers and staff.

I\{cmbers of the committee have pcrformed veq,u'ell as all applications received by the committee
werc acted upon within 3 days and in case a document is missing an official communication is done
informing the affected applicant to submit the same f<rr consideration.

No conflict of interest in thc committee has ever been cxperie nced since high level of integrity is
obsen,ed while discharging their mandates.

Thc committee remuneration is per the SRC circular on pa)'mcnt of committec allowances for
N{embers of thc County Asscmbly and support staff and the fund administrat()r are not paid an1,
allorvanccs during thc mcctings.

9. Managemcnt Discussion and Analysis

During the year therc was no changc in the fund management team and the performance of the
fund was goocl as they were able to disburse a total of 1 1 Car loan and a total of 39 Mortgage to the
N{cmbers of the Counq, Assembly during the financial year.

LOANS DISBURSED

xlll

@
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Makueni County Statc and Public Officers Car Ioan and Mortgage Fund
Artnual Report and Financial Statemeuts Ibr the year cnded Junc 30,2023

The committee has managed to disburse both Car loans and l{ortgage loans totalling to 50
applications and ensured all security to the loans are adhered to, in case of car loans all original
logbooks are submitted for jointly registration b1,the applicant and the county governmcnt,
morqages are charged with the applicant's namcs and the countl, government in the title deed and a

further search is done before disbursement of funds is done.

The committce has engaged F'amily bank which is thc bank managing tl-re funcls and sign a
N{emorandum of Understanding and agreed thnt the bank should charge an interest <>f 7\h an<l2o/o

should go back to the funds accounts to help it grow.
The loans committee has in many occasions written lctters to the 1st Assembly mortgage
beneficiaries and engaged them on the best way to continue paying their loans not to become
defaulters and out of the 16 beneficiaries 5 are repaying their loans on time.
A coun case filed by the 1st Assembly bencficiaries has hindered the committec on its full mandatc
to auction houses which belong to 3 defaulters once the court case is heard and determined thc
committee will takc thc necessary action to recover in full the defaultcd amounts.

10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

Makueni county assembly exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind

cverything we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is foundecl on three pillars:

putting the customer/Citizen first, delivering relevant goods and sewices, and improving

operadonal exccllence. Below is a brief highlight of our achieveme nts in each pillar

1. Sustainability strategy and profile

To achieve Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) this goal and shape, the Assembly Accounting

Officer incentives in the intended dircction rcquircs substantial investments in the enforcement

infrastructurc and in human expertise which are in placc in the Assembly.

2. Environmentalperformance

The Nlakueni Countl, Environment and Climate Changc Policy which was approved on 6'h April,

Zo22.Provides lor a legal framework to facilitate a coordinated, coherent and effective response

to the local, national and global challenges and opportunitie s ptesented by climate change. An

overarching mainstreaming approach has been adopted to ensure the integration of climate change

considerations into dcvelopment planning, budgeting and implementation in all scctors and at all

levels of government. This Policy therefore aims to enhance adaptive capacity and build resilience

to climate variabiliry'and change, while promoting a lorv carbon development pathwa)'.

3. Employee rvelfare

xlv



Makueni County State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgagc Fund
Annual l{eport and l'inancial Statcments lbr the ycar cndcd June 10, 2023

N{akueni countl, assembly is a equal empk>1'cr which considers gender ratio while hiring. The

institution has been approvcd and adopted the HR policl'; Gender policy 2020 has also been

adopted and approved.

4. Market place practices

a) Responsiblecompetitionpracticc.

N{akueni counry assembly strictly adheres to the laid down proccdures of procurement strictly using

the IFN{IS. the Assembly pays rheir contracrors in rime

b) Ir'{arketing and advertisement-Makucni county Assembly advertises their contracts on the

rvidely supplies daily ncwspapers to give members of the public a fair chance to. apply.

c) Product stewardship- consumer rights are kept confidential and all data and pa)/ment details

are stored safely.

xv

5. CommunityEngagements

N{akueni county assembly staff engages in charitable events and welfare. During the FY, the Institution

participated in the following events:

' Ligi A'lafiinani

6.The A4akreni Vollqball leam utgaged leans front the coml in contpetition and atareness on phat lhe

Assenb! doet on otersight arti tiet done 12 the lrctitltiot.

wfi
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c .fports da)

Th institation 
.organised 

a tpotls da1 uhich.inuolued uaioat pla1ers Jron olher h$itutions in the Assenbll

gmtndt. This helped in han buildiry anong lbe af and Hon A,lenber
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Mal<uerri Couuty Statc and Public Officcrs Car loan and l\{ortgagc Fund
Annual llcport and l-inancial Statemcnts for thc year cndetl Junc 30, 2023

11. Report of The Ttustees

The Trustees submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2023 which show the state of the Fund affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Fund are approting loans lo nentberc of the Com j Arenbll and stafi,

Results

The results of the Fund for the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on page 12.

Trustees

The membcrs of the Board of Trustees who served during the ),ear are shown on pagc viii-Xi No
changes of the board were done during the year.

Auditots

The Auditor General is responsible for the starutory audit of the Fund in accordance with r\rticle 229
ol- thc (i>nstitution r>f lrcnva and thc Public Audit Act 2015.

By Ordcr of the Board

iia .!io*..K:,so. X[*ru fu
Chair of thc Board/Fund Administration Comrnittce

Dute:1<i t? ? o'a3

xvll



Makueni Couutl,Statc aud Public Officers Car loau and N'Iortgage Furtd
Annual Report and Financial Statentcnts for thc year ended Jttlte 30, 202-1

12. Statenrent of Management's Responsibilities

Section 1(>7 of tbe Ptrblic Finance i\lanagcnrcnt ,.\ct, 2012 recprircs thrt, at thc cncl of ench flr-rancial

l'ear, the r\drrinistrator of a (lotrntv Public Fund cstablished l'tv ,\laktteui Cotu4' Car atd A I or/-qryt

regrrhlion 2017 shill prcparc financial statellrellts lor thc Frrnd in accordancc s'ith the standards 
^nd

tbrmats prescribed bv the Public Sectot r\ccountrng Standatcls Board.

Thc Admrnistrator oI t[.re Cr>unq' Public I:r.rnd is responsible for the prcparatiorl and prcscntadon of
drc Fund's financral sratelrents, rvhich give a tt'nc and fair vierv oI the state <-rI affairs of the ]rund fbr
and as at the end oIt[.re firrancial veat ended onJune 30,2023. This responsrbilitv includcs: (i) nrarntairrirrg

adequate firrancial managemcnt arrangenrents and ensuring tlrat these continue to bc eft?ctivc
tl'rroughout the reporting period; (ii) r-r'raintaining proper accoLurting records, s{rich disclosc rvittr
reasonable accuracv at anv tinre tl.re financial position of the l:r-rnd; (iir) dcsigning, inlplerner.rting ar.rd

rnaintaining internal contlols relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and enstrring that tlrev arc free fronr material misstatcments, u'lrcthcr dlre to error or fraud;
(ir) safeguarding dle assets of the Irund; (r) selecting and applving appropriate accountin1l policies; and

('i) making accounting estimates drat are reasonable in tlte circurnstances.

The Administrator of the Cotrntv Public Fund accepts responsibilitl' for the Fr.rnd's financial statements,
which have been prepared usrng appropriare accolrnting policies supported bl reasonable and ptudent
judgements and estimates, in conformitl' uath International Public Sectot Accounting Standards

(IPSAS), and in the manner required bi' the PFN{ Act, 2012 trtd Alakaeni Cotn4,6a1 and Alorlgage

regtlation 2017. The Admrnistrator of the Fr.rnd is of the opinion drat the Fund's financial statements

give a true and fair vies' of the state of Fund's tlansactions during the financial 1'ear ended June 30,

2023, and of the Fund's financial position as at that date. The Administrator fr:rther confirm the
completeness of dre accounting records maintained for the Fund, which have been reLied upon in dle
preparation of the Fund's financial statements as u,ell as the adequacy of the svstems oIintetnal Frnancial

cootrol.

In preparing the financial statements, the Admrnistrator of the Counq' Public Fund has assessed the

Fund's abiliq,to continue as a going concern and drsclosed, as applicable, matters relating to the use of
goiog concern basis of preparation of the financial statements.

N othing has come to the attention of the Admrristrator to indicate that the Fund wrll n<.rt remain a

going concern for at least the next rwelve months from the date of this statemcnt.

Approval of the financial statements

Thc Fund t financial statcments werc a y the Boarcl on n 2023 and signedrovcd b
on its behalf br':

Administrator of th' untyff" ublic Fund

xvlll
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Telephone: +154-(zo) l214ooo
E-mail: info@oagkenya.go.ke
website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GET{ERAL

f) n h u nt i n g ..l c t t t u n t o h i I i t.r'

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MAKUENI COUNTY ASSEMBLY STATE
AND PUBLIC OFFICERS CAR LOAN AND MORTGAGE FUND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
govemance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ac|2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Quallfied Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Makueni County Assembly State
and Public Officers Car Loan and Mortgage Fund set out on pages 1 to 42, which

Reporl olthe Auditor-General on Makueni County Assembly State and Public Olficers Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

for the yeor ended 30 June, 2023

a
i

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box Joo84-oo1oo
NAIROBI



t
comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of
financial performance, statement of ctranges in net assets, statement of cash flows and
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015.1have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Makueni County Assembly State and Public Officers
Car Loan and Mortgage Fund as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management
Act, 2012 and the Public Finance Management (Makueni County State and Public
Officers Car Loan and Mortgage Fund) Regulations, 2017.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

'1. Non-Performing Loans

The statement of financial position and, as disclosed in Note 138 to rhe financial
statements, reflects balances from long-term receivables from exchange transactions of
Kshs.317,646,208. lncluded in the balance, is an amount of Kshs.64,088,239 relating to
defaulted loans issued to the members of inaugural Makueni County Assembly. Although
the Fund management has engaged debt collectors and written demand notices to the
defaulters, there has not been any commitment from the loanees to repay the loans.
Further, contrary to the guidelines of the Fund, the loans have not reverted to commercial
terms despite the loans' status changing to "non-performing".

Further, the statement of financial position and, as disclosed in Note 13A to the financial
statements, reflects current portion of long-term receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.67,387,397. The balance includes an amount of Kshs.8,567,074 in
respect of interest receivable. The interest relates to defaulted loans whose recoverability
remains in doubt.

ln the circumstances, recoverability of the long outstanding loans amounting to
Kshs.64,088,239 and interest receivables balance of Kshs.8,567,074 remains doubtful.

2. Unconfirmed Expenditure on Use of Goods and Services

The statement of financial performance and, as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial
statements, reflects expenditure on use of goods and services of Kshs.6,627,028 which
differs with the amount reflected in the statement of cash flows of Kshs.5,899,385 by an
unexplained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.727,643.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of use of goods and services expenditure of
Kshs.6,627,028 could not be confirmed.

r-.t
\- ,i
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The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I arr independent of the Makueni County Assembly State and Public
Officers Car Loan and Mortgage Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on
Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI
and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of
financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and aciualon comparable basis of Kshs.229,143,209 and Kshs.194,890,482 respectively
resulting to an underfunding of Kshs.34,252,728 or 15o/o of the approved budget.

The underfunding may have affected planned activities which may have impacted on
service delivery to the staff of the County Assembly of Makueni.

2. lmminent Depletion of the Fund

The statement of financial performance reflects a deficit of Kshs.5,986,352 increasing
the Fund's accumulated deficit from Kshs.3O,171,406 in the previous year to
Kshs.36,157,759 in the year under review. lf Management does not turn around the Fund
and start reporting surpluses, then the revolving fund is likely to be depleted and therefore
deny staff of Makueni County Assembly opportunity to own homes and/or cars.

My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the previous year's audit report, several paragraphs were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in use of Public
Resources, and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, Management has not resolved the issues nor given any
explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the financial reporting template issued
by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSASB).

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
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t
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to c'ause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis of Conclusion

Non-Adherence to the Third of Basic Salary Rule

Review of loan disbursement records revealed loans amounting to Kshs.'179,610,203 had
been disbursed in the year under review. lncluded in this amount are loans amounting to
Kshs.83,249,897 whose disbursements resulted into staff salary deductions exceeding
two{hirds of the basic pay to the beneficiaries.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the Law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis of Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing as applicable, matters related to
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sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to termirrilte the Fund or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Aud it

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1 )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
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amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by edrployees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Authority's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates snd related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to sustain services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required
to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

a

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.
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la Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
nts regarding independence and to communicate with them alt relationships
matters that may reasonably be thought lo bear on my independence and
licable, related safeguards

BS

al on Makueni County Assembly State and Public Officers Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
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Makrreni County State antl Public Officcrs Car loau and Mortgage Frrnd
Aunual Rcport arrd Financial Statements lbr the year cnded Jtrne 30,2023

14. Statement of Financial Performzrncc for the Year Endcd 30"'June 2023

Revenue From Non-Exchange Transactions

1Public Contributions and Donations

Transfcrs l"rom the Oounty Government

3Fincs, Penalties and Othet I-cvies

Revenue From Exchange Transactions

.5,019,4514 5,48U,541Interes t Income

14,0645Other Incomc

5,019,4515,502,605Total Revenue

Expenses

5,284,3596 4,861,,930Employee Costs

11,,811,121,7 6,627,028Use of goods and services

uDepreciation and Amortization Expcnse

9Ilinance C<>sts

17,101,48011,488,958Total Expenscs

10Gain/Loss on Disposal of Assets

11Gain /Loss on fair value of investmcnts

-s,986,3s2 -12,082,030Surplus/ (Dcficit) for the Period

(f he nolu tet Ml on

Narne:
L/

Administrato ofthc Futtd

)8lorm an ifltegral part of lhue Financial Statenentt)

7r

ii:us'pa Same: frc.nc is
Fund Accountant

MqrLhci

ICPAK Member Number: 'i 3-.1 xJ

2022-2023 F\ 2121-2022FY
N()tc

Kshs Kslrs
l)cscriptiorr

2

Other Gains/Losscs

EL-
F

l



Nlal<ucni County State and Public Officcrs Car loan and N,Iortgage Fund
Annual lleport and Fiuancial Statemcnts for the ycar endcd June 30, 2023

15. Statement of Financial Position As at 30 June 2023

Asscts

Currcnt Asscts

Cash and Cash Ilquivalents 1,2 1 9,651 ,810 1.,261,,680

Current Portion of Long- Term Receivables [irom
Exchange Transactions 13A 67,387,397 58,673,7 40

Prepayments 14

Inventories

Investments in financial asscts 16

Total current assets 87,039,207 59,935,420

Non-Current Assets

Propcrty, Plant and Equipment 11

lntangible Asscts 1B

Long Term Receivables from Exchange Transactions 13u 317,646,208 159,341,572

Investment Property 19

Total non- current assets 317,646,209 '1.59,341,572

Totzrl Asscts 404,695,475 219,276,991,

Litbilitics
Current Liabilitics
Tradc and Other Payables from lixchangc Transactions 20 727,643 848,39u

Current Portion of Borrowings 21

llmployee Ilenefi t Obligations 22

Social benefi t liabilitics 23

Total cutrent liabilitics 727,643 848,398

Non-Current Liabilitics
Long Term Porrion of Borrowings 21,

Non-Current Iimployee Bencfit Obligation 22

Social benefi t liabilities 23

Total Liabilities 727,643 848,398

2

Note
2022-2023 F\

Kshs

2021-2022 FY

l(shs
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Mahueui County State and Public Officcrs Car loan and Mortgagc Fund
Anlrual Rcport and Financial Statcments for the year ended June 30, 2023

Net Assets

440,115,531 248,600,000Revolving Fund

Reserves

-36,157,759 -30,171,406Accumulated Surplus

404,685,475 219,276,991Total Net Assets anrl Liabilitics

Thc accounting policies and explanatory notcs to thcse financial smtemcnts form an integral part of
the financial statcments. The entitv financial statements rvcrc approved <-rn l8- t 2 - 2023 and
signed by:

Name
Administrat /hr,i ,1e-tA

ft +
--{ _l

Name: frqn.'s l-flclitlrq
Fund Accountant

ICPAK MembcrNumber: | ]g']q1

3

Note
2022-2023 Fy 2021-2022FY

Ksh s l(shs
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Makucni County State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgagc Fund
Annual Report and Financial Staternents for the ycar endcd Junc 30, 2023

16. Statement Of Changes in Net Assets for thc year cndcd 30'r'Jun e 2023.

B'alance As At l July 2021 248,(r00,000 -r 8,089,377 230,510,623

Su rplus / (Deficit) F'or the
Period -12,082,030 -12,082,030

Funds Reccivcd During the
Year

Transfcrs

Rcvaluation Gain

Balance As At 30 Junc 2022 248,600,000 -30,177,407 278,428,593

Balancc As At l July 2022 248,600,000 -30,'.t7'.t,407 218,428,593

Su rplus / (I)cficit) For thc
Pcriod -5,986,352 -5,986,352

Funds Received During the
Ycar 191,515,531 191,51 5,531

Transfcrs

Revaluation Gain

Balance As At 30 Jrunc 2023 440,175,531 -36,157,759 403,957,772

4
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Makuciri County State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statemcnts for the year ended June 30,2023

17. Statement of Cash l:lo'rvs for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

Cash florvs from operating activities

1Public contributions antl donations

Trrnsfers from the county government

Interest receivcd 4 3,360,887 2,692,816

t4,0645

Total teceipts 3,374,950 2,692,816

Payments

Ilmplol,ee Costs () 4,861,930 5,284,359

5,899,38s 1,1,,81,7 ,121,Use oF Goods and serviccs 7

Financc cost

Other pa1'ments

10,767,31sTotal Paryments

-7,386,364 -74,408,664Net cash florvs from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase ofproperty, plant, equiprnent and

Intangible assets

Proceeds from salc of properry, plant & equipmcnt

25,956,966Proceeds from loan principal rcpa,vments 16,5s8,661

-179,610,203 -7,000,000Loan disbursemcnts paid out

-1,400,000Car grant paid out

Net cash flows used in investing activitics -155,053,237 9,558,661

Cash florvs from financing activities

191,515,531

Additional borrorvings 2,500,000 6,700,000

Repaymcnt of borrowings - 13,185,800 -2,000,000

180,829,731 4,700,000Net cash florvs used in hnancing activities

18,390,130

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash & cash

Equivalents -150,004

12 1,261,680 1 ,41 1,(r83Cash and cash c<luivalcnts at l July
Cash and cash cquivalcnts at 30 ltne 2023 12 19,651,810 7,261,690

2027-2022FY
N()tc

2022-202i t:Y

Kshs I{s lr s
I)cscript iorr

Receipts

2

Receipts from other opcrating activities

17,101,480

Proceeds from rcvolving fund rcceipts

I

I

--t

tr
=i-
=

=
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Makueni County State and Priblic Officer.s Car loarr and Mortgage Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcmcnts for thc ycar cndcd June 30 ,2023

18. Statcment Of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts For the year ended 30 June

Budget notcs

Proide belotu a contt e,rlary on ignficant mdenliliqation (belotu 90oh of tilirytion) and an1 ounttiliqation
(rP.tA., 24.14)

Proaide an explanation of chargu behaeen oigixal and fnal bndget indicatirrg wb*her the dfference is dse to
reallocations or other casyt. (IP.lA.l 24.29)

Makreni comj Assenb! bad b*lgetedfor Kshs 103,916,604 in itsFY 2022/2023 Bdgetuhih Kshs
119'724,000 uas bndgeled uder the Comry Exeeatiae bdget. The total brdget was Kshs 223,640,604.

2

6

a b C-(a+b) d e-(c-d)

Revenuc

Public
Contributions and
Donations

Transfcrs From
County Govt. 223,640,604 223,640,(\04 1 91,51 5,531 32,125,072 B(>"/o

Intercst Incomc -5,488,541 5,488,s41 2,1,27,655 61"
()ther Incomc 14,064 14,064 1,4,064 1,00t'h

Total Income 229,143,209 229,743,209 1,94,890,482 34,252,729

Expenscs

L,mploy'ce costs 4,861,930 4,861,930 4,861,930 0 1,00"h

Use of (]oods and
Services 6,627,028 6,621,028 6,627,028 0 100%
Irinancc (-ost

Total Expenditure 11,488,958 11,488,958 11,488,959 0

Surplus For the
Pcriod 217,654,252 217,654,,252 1,83,401,524 34,252,728

Capital
expenditure

l)cscription

ICshsKsh s Kshs Kshs Kshs

f=d/
c*100

3,360,887



Makueni County State and Public OfficcI's Car loan and Mortgage Fttnd
Annual Rcp ort and Financial Statenrents for the year ended June 30,2023

19. Notes to the Financial Staternents

1. General Information

Makueni county Assemblv cntiq,is cstal>lished by and derive s its authority and accountability from

car arrd mortgage 2017 Act. The entity is rvholly orvncd by thc I\{akueni County Govcrnment and

is domicilcd in I(enya. 'fhc cntity's principal activitl,is to disburse and regulate car and mortgage

loans.

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

'fhc Fund's financial statements have been prcpared in accordancc rvith and comply rvith

Intcrnational Public Scctor Accounting Srandards (IPSAS). Thc financial statcmcnts arc prcscntcd

in I(enya shillings, rvhich is the functional and rcporting currcnc)r of thc F'und. 'lhe accounting

policies have been consistcndy applied to all thc 1'cars presentcd. The financial statcmcnts have

been prepared on the basis of h.istorical cost, unless stated othcnvise. The cash flow statcment is

prcpared using the direct mcthod.'lhc financial statements arc prcpared on accrual basis.

3. ddoption ofnew and revised standards

(i) Naa and anended standatds and inhtpretations in isne b notl,e/ effeclive in thelear ended )0 June 202)

Applicable: l" lan:trary 20?3

The objectivc of IPSAS 41 is to cstablish principlcs for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that rvill Present rclevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment

of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash florvs.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements rvith more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forwardlooking expccted credit loss model

that is applicable to all financial instruments subiect to

impairment testing; and

7
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. Applying an improvcd hcdgc accounting mode I that broadens

thc hcdging arrangcments in scope of thc guidance. The mode I

develops a strong link bctwcen an Entiry's risk management

stratcgies and thc accounting treatment for instruments held as

part of the risk management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l" lanuary 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithFul

representativeness and comparabiLiry of the information that a reporting

Entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The

information provided should help users of the financial statements and

general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) 'fhe nature of such social benefits provided by the Entiry;

(b) The key fcatures of the operation of those social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial

pcrformance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendmcnts to

Other IPSAS resulting

from IPSAS 41,,

Financial Instruments

Applicable: 1' larutary 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update thc guidance relatcd to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hcdging and crcdit risk which were inadvcrtently omitted when

IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertendy omitted when IPSAS 41 rvas issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

rvere inadvertcntly omitted rvhen IPSAS 41 rvas issued.

8
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Other improvements

to IPSAS

Applicable f ' Jan u ary 2023

o IP.|A.9 22 Disclostre of Financial InJontation abort tbe Gneral Goucmment

.leclor,

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

o IP.|AS 39: Enrplolu Bmeftt

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29:. Financial instruments: . Recognition and

Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 1"'January 2023.

(ii) Ncu and anended standards and i erpretations in isae bat notlel cfeaiae in thelear ended 30 Jme
2021.

IPSAS 43 Applicable ?' January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensurc that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that

faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis

for users of linancial statements to assess the effect that leases have on

the financial position, financial performance and cashflorvs of an

Entiry.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44: Non-

Currcnt Asscts I Iclcl

for Salc and

Discontinucd

Operations

Applicable f' Januaty 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

9
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Asscts that meet thc criteria to be classified as held for sale to bc

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinucd operations to be presented separately in the

statement of financial performance.

(iii) E,arly adoption of standards

The Entity did not early - adopt any nev or amended standards in the financial year or tbe enlij
adopled lhefollotuitg standards ear! (stah x standardt, reason for ear! adoption and inpacl on entig'sfnancial

slatemettls.)

t0
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Revenues from non-cxchange transactions with othcr govcrnmcnt entitics arc measurcd at fair
value and rccognizcd on obtaining control r>f thc asset (cash, goods, sen,ices and propcrq) if the
transfer is frcc from conditir:ns and it is probablc that thc cconomic bcncfits or servicc potcntial
relatcd to the asset rvill florv to the entity and can bc measured rcliably.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest income

Intetest incomc is accrucd using thc cffcctivc yield mcthod.'l-hc cffectivc 1,ield discounts estimatcd
future cash receipts through the cxpcctcd Iifc of the financial asset to that assct's nct carrying
amount. Thc meth<-rd applies this yield to the principal outstanding to dctermine intercst incomc
each period.

Divldcnds

Dividends or similar distributions must bc rccognized rvhen thc shareholder's or the Entity's right
to receive payments is established.

Rental incomc arising from operating lcascs on investment propertics is accountcd for on a

straight-line basis ovcr thc lcase terms and includcd in rcvcnuc.

b) Budget information

'l'he original budget for FY 2022-2023 rvas approvcd by the Cotrnty Asscmbly on 24't' )one 2022.
Subsequent rcvisions or additional appropriations rvcre nrade to the xppro\.ed budget in
accordance rvith spccific approvals frorn thc appr<>priatc authoritics. Thc additional appropriations
are added to the original budget by the entity up<>n recciving thc rcspcctivc approvals in ordcr to
conclude thc final budget. Accordingly, thc [rund rccorded additional appropriations of nil on the
FY 2022-2023 budget follorving the governing body's approval.

The cntity's budget is preparcd on a differcnt basis to thc acrual incomc and expcnditurc disclosed
in the financial statcments. 'fhc financial statements are prcpared on accnral basis using a

classification based on the naturc of cxpcnscs in thc statemcnt of financial performance, rvhcrcas
thc budget is preparcd on a cash basis. Thc amounts in the financial statcments rverc rccast from
the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on thc same basis as the
approvcd budgct. A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts, prcpared on a comparable basis t<;

the epproved budgct, is thcn prescnted in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.

1l

3. Signilicant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entities

Rental income
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Summary of Signilicant Accounting l'olicies (Continued)

In addition to the Basis diffcrencc, adjustmcnts to amounts in thc financial statcments arc als<r

madc for diffcrenccs in the formats and classification schemcs adoptcd f<rr thc prcsentation of thc
financial statcmcnts and thc approvcd budgct.

A statement to rcconcile thc actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison <>f budgct and acrual amounts and thc actuals as pcr thc statemcnt of financial
pcrformance has becn presented undcr scction xxx of thesc financial statcments.

c) Propertyr plant and cqr.ripmcnt

All propcrty, plant and equipment are statcd at cost lcss accumulatcd depreciation and impairmcnt
losscs. Cost includes expenditure that is dircctly attributable to the acquisition of the items. \Vhcn
significant parts of propertl', plant and cquipment arc requircd to bc rcplaccd at intcrvals, the entity
rccog'nizes such parts as individual asscts rvith specific uscful lives and dcpreciatcs thcm
accordingly. Likervise, rvhen a major inspcction is performcd, its cost is rccognized in thc carrying
amount of the plant and cquipment as a rcplaccmcnt if the recog'nition critcria are satisfied. All
other rcpair and maintcnancc costs arc recognized in surplus or dcflcit as incurred. Whcrc an assct

is acquircd in a non-exchangc transaction for nil or nominal consideration thc assct is initially
measured at its fair value.

d) Intangible Assets

e) Investment propc(ty

Invcstmcnt pr<;perties arc mcasurcd initially at cost, including transaction costs. 'fhe carrying
amount includcs thc replaccment cost of componcnts of an cxisting investment propcrq, at thc

time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria arc mct and cxcludcs the costs of day-to-day
maintcnance of an investmcnt properry. Investment propcrq, acquircd through a n<>n-cxchangc

transaction is measurcd at its fair value at the date of acquisition. .ffisetltent lo irtilial rccognilion,

ifivestfieflt Prlpe,'ties are measrred rcitg /he cost model and are deprecialed ouer d,1 .\'\)tear Peiod or inueslment

PrlperA is meanrcd atfair aahrc n,itb gains and losys recognised tbrorglt sarphrs or defcit.(entity to amend
apptopriately) Invcstment propcrties are derccognized cither rvhen they have been disposcd of
or rvhcn thc investmcnt properq, is permancntly rvithdrarvn from use and no firturc cconomic

benefit or scrvice potential is expectcd from its disposal.'fhc diffcrcnce betrvecn the nct disposal

procccds and the carrying amount of thc assct is rccognizcd in the surplus or deficit in the period
of de-rccognition.

12

Intangible asscts acquired scparatcll, arc initialll, rccognizcd 
^t 

cost. Thc cost of intangible asscts

acquircd in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at thc date of the exchange. F-ollowing
initial recognition, intangiblc assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Internalll, generated intangiblc asscts, excluding capitaLizcd
dcvclopment costs, are not capitalized and expcndirure is rcflccted in surplus or deficit in the
period in rvhich the cxpenditure is incurrcd.

'l'he uscful lifc of thc intangible asscts is assessed as either finite or indefinite.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

f) Financial instmments

IPSAS 41 addresses the classification, mcasurcment and de-rccognition of financial asscts and

financial liabilitics, introcluccs ncrv rulcs for hcdge accounting and a ncrv impairment modcl for
financial assets. I'be e itl does nol baae an1 bedge rclationsltips and tbercfore lhe netv bedpe aceotrnling nles hare

no inpact on tbe Companl\ fnancial alettenlr. (anend at appropriate). A financial instrumcnt is an1'

contract that givcs risc to a financial asset of onc cntity and a financial liability or cquitl, instrumcnt
of another cntitl'. At initial recognition, the entit)' measures a financial asset or financial liabiliry at

its hir value plus or minus, in thc casc of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair valuc

through surplus or dcficit, transaction costs that are directly attributablc to the acquisition or issuc

of the financial assct or financial liability.

Financial asscts

Classification of financial assets

The entitl, classifics its financial assets as strbsequendy measured at amortiscd cost, fair value

through nct asscts/ equity or fair valuc through sr.rrplus and deficit on thc basis of both thc entity's

management model for flnancial assets and thc contracrual cash florv characteristics of thc financial

asseL A financial assct is measured at amortized cost rvhen thc financial asset is held rvithin a
managcment model rvhose objective is to hold financial assets in ordcr to collect contractual cash

floun and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd datcs to cash florvs that

are solely paymcnts of principal and intcrcst on the principal outstanding. A financial asset is

measured at fair valuc through nct asscts/ equiq,if it is held rvithin the management modcl rvhose

objective is achicvcd by both collccting contractlral cashflorvs and selling frnancial asscts and the

contractual terms of thc financial asset give rise on spccificd dates to cash florvs that are solcly

pa)'ments of principal and intercst on the principal amount outstanding. A financial assct shall be

measurcd at fair value through surplus or deficit unlcss it is mcasurcd at amortizcd cost or fair

valuc through net assets/ cquity unless 
^n 

entity has madc irrevocable clcction at initial rccognition

for particular invcstmcnts in cquity instrunrcnts.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business nrodel and the cash florv characteristics, the cntity classifies its financial

asse6 into amortizcd cost or fair valuc catcgorics for financial instrumcnts. Movemcnts in fair
value are prescnted in cither surplus or dcficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being mct.

l3
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Summaty of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

Amortized cost

Financial assets that arc held for collcctir>n of contractual cash florvs rvhcre thosc cash florvs

rcpresent solely pal,rncnts oFprincipal and intercst, and that are not designated at fair valuc tlrrough
surplus or deficit, arc mcasured at amortizcd cost. ..\ gain or loss on an instrumcnt that is

subsequcndy measured at amortizcd cost and is not part ofa hedging rclationship is recognized in

pr<>fit or lr>ss rvhcn thc asset is dc-recognized or impaircd. Intcrest incomc from thcsc financial

assets is included in finance incomc using the effective interest rlrtc method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that arc hcld for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling thc financial

assets, rvhcrc thc asscts' cash florvs rcpresent solell' pa1'mcnts of principal and intcrest, arc

mcasurcd at fair value through nct asscts/ equit1,. N{ovements in thc carrying amount are takcn

through net asscts, exccpt for thc rccognition o[ impairment gains or losscs, intcrcst rcvcnuc and

foreign cxchangc gains and losscs rvhich are rccognizcd in surplus/deficit. Intcrcst inct>me from
thcse financial asscts is includcd in financc income using thc cffcctivc interest rate method.

Fait value through surplus or defrcit

Financial assets that do not mcct the critcria for amortized cost or fair valuc through nct asscts/

equity arc mcasurcd at fair valuc through surplus or deficit. A busincss modcl rvhere the entitl,
managcs financial assets rvith the objcctivc of rcalizing cash flos,s through solely the salc o[ the

assets rvould rcsult in a fair valuc through surplus or deficit modcl.

Trade and other receivables

'I'rade and other receivablcs arc recognized at fair values less allorvances For any uncollcctiblc

amounts. Tradc and othcr receivablcs arc asscssed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
cstimatc is madc oF doubtful reccivablcs bascd on a rcvicrv of all outstanding amounts at the )'car
cnd.

Impaitment

'I'he cntitl, asscsscs, on a fonvard-looking basis, thc expccted crcdit k>ss (ECL) associatcd rvith its
financial assets carricd at amortized cost and fair value through nct assets/equity. The entiq,

rccognizcs a k>ss allorvancc for such losscs at cach reporting datc. Critical estimates and significant
judgmcnts made by managcmcnt in detcrmining the expccted crcdit loss (ECL) are set out.

l4
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Classilication

Thc entity classifies its liabilitics as subsequently mcasured at amortized cost exccpt for financial

liabilities measured through profit or loss.

g) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial rccogniti<-rn. To the extent that invcntory rvas rcceivcd
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory
is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurrcd in bringing each product to its prcsent location and conditions are accounted for,
as follorvs:

F Rarv mate rials: purchasc cost using thc wcighted average cost mcthod

) Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct matcrials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overhcads based on the normal operating capaciry, but excluding borrowing
costs

After initial tecognition, invcntorl, is mcasurcd at the lorvcr of cost and nct rcalizable value.
However, to thc extent that a class of inventory is distributed or dcployed at no chargc or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is mcasurcd at the lowcr of cost and current rcplacement
cosLNet realizable value is the estimated selling pricc in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of complction and the estimated costs necessar), to make thc sale, cxchange, or
distribution. Inventorics arc rccog'nized as an expensc rvhcn deployed for utilization or
consumption in the ordinary coursc of opcrations of the Entit1,.

h) Provisions

Provisions are rccognizcd rvhcn the Entity has a prcscnt obligation (lcgal or constructivc) as a

result o[ a past evcnt, it is probablc that an outflow of re sourccs cmbodying e c<>nomic be ne fits or
servicc potential rvill be rcquircd to settlc thc obligation and a rcliable cstimatc can bc madc of the
amount of the obligation. Vhe rc thc Entiti' cxpccts somc or all of a provision to bc rcimburscd,
for cxamplc, undcr an insurancc contract, thc rcimbursement is rccognized as a separatc asset only
rvhcn the rcimbursement is virrually certain. Thc expense rclating to any provision is prcsented in
thc statemcnt of financial pcrf<rrmance nct of any reimburscrncnt.

i) Social Bcnefits

Social bencfits are cash transfcrs provided to i) spccific individuals and f or houschr>lds that meet

the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigatc the e ffects of social risks and iii) Address thc nccd <>f socicry as a

rvhole. Thc entity rccogniscs a s<>cial benefit as an expense fot the social bencfit schcme at thc

same time that it recogniscs a liabilirl,. Thc liabiliq, for the social l;enefit schcmc is nrcasured at

the bcst cstimate of the cost (thc social bcncfit payments) that thc cntity rvill incur in fulfilling thc
present obligations represcntcd by the liabiliq,.
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Sununary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

j) Contingent liabilities

Thc Entiq, does not rcc<>gnize a contingent liabiliq, but discbscs dctails of an1, contingcncies in
thc notcs to the financial statcments, unlcss thc possibility of an outflorv of resourccs cmbodying
econ<>mic bcnefits or se rvicc potential is remote.

Contingent assets

Thc Iintiq, docs not rccognizc a c()ntingcnt assct, but discloses dctails of a possil>lc assct rvhosc
existcncc is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrcncc of one or morc unccrtain future
cvcnts not rvhol\, rvithin the control of thc Ilntity in the notes to the financial statements.
Contingent asscts are asscsscd continually to cnsurc that dcvck>pmcnts are appropriatcly reflectcd
in the flnancial statemcnts. If it has becomc virtualll, certain that an inflorv of economic bcncfits
or scrvicc potential will arise and the assct's valuc can be measurcd rcliably, thc assct and thc relatcd
revcnuc are rccognizcd in thc financial statcmcnts of the pcriod in rvhich the changc <.rccurs.

k) Natnre and pulpose of reserves

Thc lintiry crcates and maintains reserves in tcrms of specific requirements. Errl;9 to slale the resentes

naintained and appropiale policiu adopted.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

'fhc Entity rccognizes the effects of changcs in accounting policy rctrospectively. 'lhe effects of
changcs in accounting policy arc applied ptospectively if retrospcctive application is impractical.

m) Employee benefrts - Retirement benefit plans

'Ihe I-ntiq, provides rctircmcnt benefits fcrr its employees and dircctors. Defined contribution
plans are post-emplol,mcnt bcncfit plans undcr which an cntity pays fixed contributions into a

seParatc entity (a fund) and rvill have no lcgal or constructivc obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund docs not hold sufficient assets to pay all cmployec bcncfits relating to
cmplol'ce service in thc currcnt and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the

Pa)'mcnt of retiremcnt bcnefits are charged against incomc in thc 1'ear in.rvhich thcy become
payable.

Defincd bcncfit plans arc p()st-cmplo),ment bcncfit plans othcr than defined-contril>ution plans.
Thc dcfincd benefit funds arc actuarially valued tri-annually on thc projected unit credit method
basis. Dcficits idcntifrcd arc recovered through lump sum pa)/ments or increased future
contributions on proportional basis to all participating empkry,crs. 'fhc contributions and lump
sum p^ymcnts reduce thc post-cmplol'mcnt bcncfit obligation.

l6
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Sunnnary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

n) Foreign currency transactions

'fransactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of cxchangc on the
date o[ thc transaction. 'l'rade crcditors or dcbtors denominated in foreign currcncy are rcportcd
at thc statemcnt of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange diffcrcnces arising from thc scttlcment of crcditors, or from the rcporting of crcditors
at rates diffcrcnt from those at rvhich they,rvcrc initially rccorded during the pcriod, are recognizcd
as incomc or expenses in the period in rvhich they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arc capitalized against qualifying assets as part of properry, plant and equipment.
Such borrorving costs arc capitalized over thc period during rvhich thc asset is bcing acquircd or
constructed and borrorvings havc bccn incurred. Capitalization ceascs rvhen construction of the
asset is complcte. Furthcr borrorving costs arc charged t() thc statcmcnt of financial performance .

p) Rclated partics

'fhe Entity rcgards a rclatcd party as a pcrson or an cntiq, rvith the ability to cxcrt c()ntrol
individually or iointly, or to exercisc significant influence ovcr the Entity, or vice vcrsa. Mcmbers
oFkey management are rcgarded as related parties and comprise thc dircctors, the CEO and scnior
managers.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalcnts comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shott-tcrm deposits on call
and highly liquid invcstmcnts rvith an original maturity'of three months or less, rvhich are rcadill,
convcrtiblc to knorvn amounts <>f cash and arc subjcct to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balanccs includc amounts hcld at thc Ccntral Bank of I(cn1'a and at variolrs
commercial banks at thc cnd of thc financial ),car. For thc purposcs of these financial statcmcnts,
cash rnd cash equivalcnts also includc short tcrm cash imprests and advances to authorised public
officcrs and/or institutions rvhich rvere not surrendered or accountcd for at the cnd of thc financial
year.

r) Comparativc figr.rres

Vhere ncccssary comparativc figurcs for thc previous financial ycar have bccn amendcd or
reconfiguted to conform to thc rcquircd changcs in prcscntati<-rn.

I1
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The key assumptions conccrning the futurc and other kel,sources t>f cstimation uncertaint), at the
rcporting datc, that havc a significant risk of causing a matcrial adjustmcnt to the carrf ing 

^mounrsof asscts and liabilitics rvithin thc next financial )'ear, arc dcscribed belorv. Thc llntity bascd its
assumptions and cstimates on parameters available rvhcn the consolidated financial statcmcnts
rvcre prcparcd. Horvever, existing circumstanccs and assumptions about futurc dcvclopments mal,
changc duc to markct changcs or circumstanccs arising bc1'ond thc control of thc E,ntity. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions rvhen they occur. IPSAS 1.140.

b) Uscful livcs and residual values

'fhe useful lives and residual valucs ofassets arc asscsscd using the follorving indicators to inform
potential future use and valuc from disposal:

! Thc condition of the asset bascd on the assessment of cxperts cmployed by thc Entity

) Thc nature of the asset, its susccptibility and adaptability to changcs in technology and

Proccsscs

) .fhe 
nature of the processcs in rvhich rhc asser is dcployed

) Availability of funding to replacc the assct

) Changcs in the market in relation to the assct

c) Provisions

Provisions rvere raised and management dctcrmincd an cstimatc based on the information
availablc. Additional disclosure of these estimatcs of provisions is includcd in Note xxx.

Provisions are measurcd at thc management's bcst estimatc of thc cxpenditurc rcquired to settle
the obligation at the rcporting date and are discounted t() prcscnt valuc rvhere thc effcct is material.

(lttcltde proiltiont appliable forl,otrr otganisation egprotision for bad debts, prouisions of obsolete $ocks and /)oD/

m a n age men t es ti n ates thue p roui tio n s)

l8

Surnmary of Significant Accounting Policics (Conrinued)

5. Significant iudgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

Thc prcparation o[ thc Entity's financial statements in conf<rrmiti' rvith IPSAS rccluires
managcmcnt to makc jr"rdgments, cstimates and assumptions that affcct the rcported amounts of
revenues, expenscs, asscts and liabilitics, and thc disclosure of contingcnt liabilitics, at the cnd of
the reporting period. I-lorvever, unccrtaintl, about thcsc assumptions and estimatcs could result in
()utcomcs that re<1uirc a material ad)ustment to the carq'ing amount of the assct or liabiliq, affcctcd
in luture periods.

State all )udgements, estimates and assumpti<.rns made c.g.

a) Estimates and assumptions -
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6. Notes To The Financial Statements

l. Public contributions and donations

(Prnide bri{ explanation for lhis reuenue)

2. Transfers from County Government

3. Fines, penalties and other levies

(Proridc brief expknalion for tis rct'enm)

4. Interest income

Donation From Development Partners

Contributions From thc Public

Transfers From County ()ovt. -()pcrations

Payments By County On Behalf ()f -fhe Entity

Unconditronal Dcvclopmcnt grants

Total

Late Payment Pcnaltics

F'ines

Total

3,360,887 2,692,815
Intcrest Income from i\{ortgage and Car Loans-
Received

2,127,655 2,326.634
Interest Income from I\{ortgage and Car Loans-
Accrued (deFaulted)

Total Interest Incornc 5,499,541 5,019,450

(Proilde bieJ explanation for tit nuewc)

l9

2022-2023 FY ,n r Lna) E\/

Total

2022-20'.23Fv 202t-2022FY

2022-2023 FY 2027-2022FY

2022-2023 FY 2027-2022L:y
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Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts Continued

5, Othcr income

(''l B: All incone shonld be classfied as Jar at pottible in the rvleaant claset and other income sbotrld be ttyd to
recognise ircome not elseabcre dassfied. Ditclos wite backs {an1 or recowies/wm tyile ofi),

6. Employee Costs

7. Use of Goods and Scrvices

Insurance Recoveries

Income from Sale of Tender Documcnts

Btil clcbts rccovcrccl

Interest income from Bank Deposits 14,064

Total Other Incomc 14,064

Salaries And Wages

Staff Gratuity

Staff 'fraining and Allorvances Expcnscs 4,861,930 5,284,359

SociaI Sccuriry Contribution

Other (fpecifi)

4,861,930 5,284,359

General Office Expenses

Loan Processing Costs

Professional Serviccs Costs 1,724,128 2,407,122

Professional Services (i>sts- Payablc to Family Bank 727,643

Committe e Allorvanccs

Ilank (-harqcs

lllcctricity And Vatcr lixpcnses

20

2022-2023 FY 2021-2022FY

2022-2023 FY 2027-2022FY

Total

I)cscription 2022-21)23Fv 2021-2022F\
I(shs. Kshs.
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Fucl And ()il (losts

4,169,647 586,834Insurance Costs

Printing And Stationery

Re ntal (losts

Security Costs

Telephonc r\nd Communication Ilxpcnses

5610 25,800Bank Chargcs

r\udit Fccs

Provisioh Ir<>r Doubtlul Dcbts

8,640,864Orher (.fputfi)

155,900Social bcncfi t cxpcnscs*

6,627,029 11,817,721Total

.f ocial beneft vhemes irchrde benefts srcb at caslt lransfers for memplolment or elderj in line n itb IP.|AS 42

8. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

9. Financc costs

10. Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets

Property Plant and Equipmcnt

Inangible Assets

Total

Interest ()n Bank ()r'crd rafts

Interest ()n Loans F-rom Banks

Total

Properry, Plant and llquipment

Intangiblc Assets

2l

2021-2022F\

Kshs. Iishs.

Postage And Couricr

20?2-20231\ 2021-2()22 FY

De sctipI iorr
2022-2023 FY 2021-2022Fy

Kshs. Ks hs.

2022-2023 FY 2021-2022FY
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ll. Gain/ (loss) on Fair Value Investments

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Investmcnts at Ijair Valuc- Equlty lnvcstmcntS
Fair valuc - Investment property
Fair valuc- other Iinancial assets (specify)
Total Gain

Makueni County Assembly Car and mortgage Loan
r\ccount 19,6s1,810 1,261,680

Fixed Deposits Account

On - Call l)cposits

Current Account

Othcrs (fpuSt)

Total Cash And Cash Equivalcnts 19,6s1,810

22

Total

I)cscription 2022-2023 F\ 202l-2022ts\
Kshs Ksl-rs

2022-2023FY 202t-2022FY
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Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Dcuilcd analysis of thc cash and cash equivalents are as follorvs

a) Fixed Deposits Account
Kenva Comme rcial Bank

Ilquity Bank, Etc

Sub- Total

b) On - Call Deposits
Kenl'a Commercial Bank

Iiquity Bank - E,tc

Sub- Total

c) Current Account
IlaEki N{icrofi nancc Bank 85,365 1 ,261,680

19,566,445Family Bank

Sub- Total 19,651,810 1,267,690

d) Others (Specify)

Cash In Hand

Sub- Total
19,651,810 7,267,690Grand Total

13.A Currcnt Receivablcs

I nterest llcceivable 8,567,074 4,953,063

Current [,oan Rcpay,mcnts Duc 55,120,616 53,720,676

3,699,647Insurancc cost rcceivable from mcmbers

Lcss: Lnpairmcnt Allowancc

Total Current Receivablcs 67,387,397 58,673,740

13.8 Non-Currcnt Rcceivablcs

Long Term l-oan Rcpayments Duc 317,646,208 159,341,572

377,646,208 159,347,572

Total Receivables from Exchange Transactions

23

13. Receivables from exchange transactions

2022-2023 FY. 2027-2022Fv

Cash In Transit

2022-2023 FY 2021-2022I.Y

Total Non- Current llcccivablcs



Makueni County Statc and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgagc Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Staterrrcnts for the ycar cndcd June 30,2023

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Dctailed analysis of thc cash and cash equivalents are as follorvs

13. Receivables from exchange transactions

a) Fixed Deposits Account
Iicnya Commcrcial lJank

Ilquity Bank, Etc
Sub- Total

b) On - Call Deposits
Kenva Commercial Bank

Equiry Bank - Etc
Sub- Total

c) Current Account
85,36sItafi ki N'Iicrofi nancc Bank 1,261,680

19,566,445Family Bank

Sub- Total 19,651,810 1,261,690

d) Others (Specify)

Cash ln'I'ransit
Cash ln Iland
Sub- Total
Grand Total 19,651,810

13.A Current Reccivablcs

I ntcrcst llcccival:lc 8,567,074 4,953,063

Current [.oan Repayments Due 55,120,616 53,720,676

Insurancc cost rcceivable from members 3,699,647

Lcss: Impairmcnt Allowance

Total Current Reccivablcs 67,387,397 58,673,740

13. B Non-Currcnt llcceivablcs

Long 'fcrm k>an Rcpal'mcnts Duc 317,646,208 159,341,572

Total Non- Current Receivablcs 317,646,208 159,341,572

Total Rcceivables from Exchange Transactions

23

2022-2023FY 2021-2022FY

1,261,680

2022-2023 FY 2021-2022FY.



Makucni County State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgagc Fuud
Annual Report and Financial Statcrnents for the ycar endcd June 30,2023

Notes to thc Financial Statcments Continued

Additional disclosurc on intercst rcccivable

14. Prepayments

15. Inventories

Intcrest Rcceivablc

Interest rcccivable from current portion of long-
tertn loans of previous years

Accrued intcrest rcccivable from of long-term loans

of prcvious ycars

Intcrest reccivable from curtent porlion of krng-
term loans issued in thc currcnt 1'ear

Current loan rcpayrncnts duc

Curcnt portion of long-term loans from previous
years

Accrued principal from long-tcrms loans fiom
previous pcriods

Current portion of long-tcrm loans issued in the
current year

Prcpaid Rent

Prcpaid Insurancc

Prcpaid fllcctricity Costs

Other Prcpal,m cnrs (S pe cifi)

Total

Consumablc Storcs

Spare Parts And tr{cters

Catcring

Othe r Invcntorics (Spcci{l)

24

2022-202i FY 2021-2022FY.

2()22-202-l l:\. 202L2022FY

2022-2023Fv 2021-2022F\



Makucni County Statc and Public Ofliccrs Car loan nnd Mortgngc Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcments for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notcs to the Financial Statements Continued

16. Investments in financial assets

(Entig thoild disclorc uhether tbefxed iruetlme fruncial asyts are meassred at amortised cost or atlair aalae
tbroryh changcs in net asntsf eqrij) Inuestments in eqaij shosld be meas*ed at fair aalxe tbroagb surplas or
defcit. Otlter infornalion to be disclosed hchdu: tbe interest rates, malnit1 datet, ualuation methodology, and
inpaiment of lbue inueslments.

Movement of Equity Investments

Inve stment in Treasury bills and bonds:t

Financial institution
CBK
(,I]K
Sub- total

Investment with Financial Institutions/
Banks

lr

Bank x
Bank y

Sub- total
c. Equity invcstmcnts (speciS)

Eq!q/ shares in I,.ntity
Sub- total
Grand total

At the beginning of the ycar
I)u rc hase of investmcnts in thc t'car
Sale of ir vestmcnts during thc year

Gain/(loss) in fair value of invcstments through surplus or
dcficit
At thc cnd of thc ycar

% o % Kshs Kshs Kshs

25

Total Invcntories at The Lower of Cost and Net
Realizablc Value

Dt'scripti,rrr 2022-2023I;Y 21\21-2022FY

Ksl rs Kshs

lrnpai rnrcnt lrlft;u'an cc/ pr()visi()n 2022-2023 Fy 2021-2022FY

Kshs Kshs

e) Shareholding in other entities
For intutmenls in eqrig sbare listed aboue, list dotun the eqrij inrulnents under the following categoiu:

N;rrrtc ol
llntitv l hcrc
itr\.cstnlcflt is

hcltl

No of slr arcs

\onrilrrrl
r rtlttc ol
s lur rcs

[:ai r
raluc of
sl r rtrc s

[;:rir
r-lrlrrc of'
slrrrrcs

I)ircct
s h:rrclrolrl itrg

Intlircct
share holding

Ilflcctivc
shlrcholtling

C rr rrcnt
\ citr

Priot'
vcllr
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Makueni Countv State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage Fund

Annual Report and Financial Statcments for thc year cnded June 30, 2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Properry, plant and equipment

At 1"'July (Prcvious FY)
Additions
Disposals
Transfcrs /Ad justments

At 30"'June (Previous FY)
At 1"'July (Current FY)
Additions
Disposals
Transfer/Adjustments
At 30'h June (Current FY)
Depreciation And Impalrment
At 1"July @revious F))
Depreciation
Impairment
At 30'h June (Prcvious FY)
At 1"'JuIy (Current FY)
Dcpreciauon
Disposals
Impailment
Transfer/Adiustmcnt
At 30'h June (Current FY)
Net Book Values
At 30"' June (Previous F))
At 30"'June (Current Fl)

27



Makueni County State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statements for the year cndcd June 30,2023

Notes To the Financial Statcmcnts (Continued)

18. Intangible assets

19. Invcstment Property

(For inue nent prope@ hdd at fair ulrc, ebangu in fair ttalm sborLl go throrgb lbe stalenent of fnancial
perJornancc. lY/here cosl model is eluled, deprecalion and inpainnettt sbo d not be ehatged. Inuestmeat meassred

atfair ualw thoild be erahaled at the end of tbe rQortingpeiodfor changu infair ualae.). Entig shorld disclon

tbe independent uahters, renlal ircome from tlte iruestment properA f ary attd lbe direct costs attributed to tbe

itr)eltficrrt ProperA. At1 chatges on tbe inrestment prlPen) as nell as ary difialry in ckstifiing tbis aret at an

inaulnmt propenl.

Cost

At Beginning of The Year

Aclditions

At End ofThe Year

Amortization And Impairmcnt

At Beginning of The Year

A mortization

At End ofThe Year

Impairment kss
At End ofThc Ycar

NBV

At beginning of the year

Additions

Disposal during thc 1'car

Dcprcciation

Impairment

Gain/(oss) in lait valuc (if fair valuc is clccted)

At cnd of the ycar

28

I

2022:2oL1F\ 2021-2022FY

I )('s(:ril)tir)rl
2022-2023 FY 2021,-2022FY

Kshs I(shs
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Makucni County Statc and Public Officci's Car loan and l\{ortgage Funrl
Annual Ilcport and Financial Statements for the ycar cndctl June 30, 2023

Notcs To The Financial Statcmcnts (Continue d)

20. Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

2 l. Provisions

'Iradc Pavablcs

Rcfundable Deposits

Accnrccl intercst to Itrfiki tr{icrofinancc l}ank 848,398

Accrued interest payable to Family Bank 121,643

Total Trade and Other Payables 848,398

Ageing analysis (Trade and other payables)
Current

FY
7o ofthe

Total
Comparative

FY
7o of the

Total
Undcr one year 727,643 1000 %

1-2 years /o %

2-3 years /o "
oh

Total (tie to above total) 727,643

Balance At the Beginning of The Ycar

r\rklitional Pnx'isiorrs

Provision Utilisccl

Change Due to Discount and Tirnc Value
For Money
'l'ransfcts Ftorn Non -(]urrcnt Provisions

Balance At the End of The Year

29

("1B: Anornt rnder deposik and nhntions slto d tie to caslt lrld in deposit acconttt)

2022-2023 FY 2021-2022FY

Over 3 years %

I

------T------



l\{akueni County Statc and Public Officers Car loan and I\'lortgagc Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcmcnts for the ycar endcd Junc 30, 2023

Notes To the Financial Statements (Continued)

22. Borrowings

The tablc bclorv shorvs thc classification of borrorvings into external and domestic borrowings

The able belorv shorvs thc classification of borrorvings long-term and current borrorvings

(I'JB: l/te lolal of tltb statemenl sboild tie to zte 22 totdlr. Carnnl portion of borrolings are those bonontings lhat
are pdyable uithin one lear or the next f nancial yar. Additional disclostres 0n lermr of borrontings, natre of
bormwingt, teadfl and interut rates slto d be didwed). Borrowing sho d be measued at amorlised eo$ as per
rPSAS 41)

Balance At Beginning of The Period

Extcrnal Borrorvings During the Year

Domestic llorrorvings During the Year

Repayments Of External Borrorvings During the
Period

Re payments ()f Domestics Borrorvings During the
Period

Balance At End of The Period

External Borrorvings

Dollar Dcnominated Loan From - Organization'

Sterling Pound Denominated I-oan From '-
Organization'

Euro Denominated Loan from - Organization'

Domestic Borrorvings

Kcnla Shilling Loan From I(CB

Kcnp Shilling I-oan from Barclal,s Bank

Kenya Shilling I-oan from Consolidatcd Bank

Borrorvings Irrom Othcr (l<>r,crnmcnt Institutions

Total Balance at End of Thc Yeat

Short Tcrm Botrorvings (Currcnt Portion)

I-ong Tcrm Borrorvings

Total

30

2022-2023FY 2027-2022FY

2022-2023 bY 202t-2022Fy

l)esc ri ptiorr
2022-2023 F\ 2021-2022FY



Makueni County State and Public Officers Car loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statements for thc ycar endcd Junc 30,2023

Notes To the Financial Statements (Continued)

23. Employee benefit obligations

24. Social Benefit Liabilities

.locial beneft scbenes inchde benefts sttclt at caslt lrantfen for rnenrPlq,rnent or elde y in lite uitb IP.\'A.| 42
Tbq arc inaored lo mitigate againsl a urtain social itk egpouerA, age, memplolmett among others.

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Current Benefit
Obligation
lrvon-Currcnt
Benefit Obligation
Totzrl

I Icalth sr>cial bcncfit schcmc

Uncmplol'rr-rcnt social bcne fit scheme

Orphancd and rn:lnerablc bcncfit scheme

Illclcrly social bcncfit schcmc

Bursary, social bencfi ts

Total

(lurrcnt social bcnefi ts

Non- current social benefits

Total (tie to totals above)

3l

I

2022-2023
FY

2021-202?
FY

I)escril>tion
2022-202i EY 2021-2022FY

Kshs Kshs



Makueni County State and I'ublic Officcrs Car loan and Mortgagc Futrd
Annual Report and Financial Statenrents for the ycar cnded June 30, 2023

Notes To The Financial Statcments (Continued)

25. Cash generatcd ftom operations

(fhe tutal of tbis statetten/ s/to d lie lo tlte caslflou seclion on net cashflowsfrom operating acliuities)

Sulplus/ (Deficit) For the Ycar Before Tax

Depreciation

A mortisation

Gains/ l-osses <>n Disposal of Assets

Intcrcst Incomc

Finance (irst

Increase In Rcccivablcs

Increase In Payables

32

2022-2023 FY 2021-2022FY

Ad justed For:

Working Capital Adiustmcnts

Increasc In Invcntory

Net Cash Florv ftom Operating Activitics



I\'llkucui Couuty Statc and Public Officcrs Car loan nnd Mortgagc Funtl
Annual lleport and Financial Statcnrcuts for thc ycar cndcd Junc 30, 2023

Notes To the Financial Statemcnts (Continucd)

26. Related party balances

a) Nature of related party relationships

Entrtics and other plrties relatcd to thc Fund includc those partics who havc ability, to exercise
control or cxercisc significant influencc <>vcr its opcrating and financial dccisions. Related partics
include managemcnt pcrsonncl, thcir associatcs and closc family membcrs. Thc fund/schcme is

rclatcd to thc folk>rving cntitics:

a) 'I'he County G<>r,e rnmcnt;
b) The Parcnt County Government N{inistry;
c) I(e y manage mcnt;
d) Board of Tnrstccs; ctc.

b) Related party transactions

c) Key management remuneration

d) Due from related parties

Transfe rs From llelatcd Partics'

'f r:rnsfcrs'l'o Rclatccl I)arties

Board Of 'frustccs

I(ey lr{anagcmcnt Compensation

Total

Duc Iirorn Parcnt Ministry

Duc From County Government

Total

JJ

f)t scrip tion
2022-2023ts\ 2021-2022FY

Kslrs Kshs

l)cscription
2022-2023 FY 2021-2022FY

Xshs Ksh s

I)cscriptir,n
2022-2023 tY 2021-20228Y

I(shs Kshs



N,I ueni Counti Statc and Public OfficeI's Car loan nnd Mortgage Ftrrtd
An rual Il ort and Financial Statcments for the year endcd June 30, 2023

Other Disclosures Continued

e) ue to related parties

27. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

(Girc details)

Due To Key N'Ianagement Pcrsonncl

4,362,659.70|ADES I(AI-U N Dt\ N{UIINIr\

4,365,039.15KYALO TIU]\IO

4,365,039.15BENDICT KE,NNEDY I\IANENO

2,051,495.40]r\CI(II Nli MUTHINI KAMUI-A
75,744,233.40Total

C<>urt Casc Against the Fund

llank Cl traran tccs

Total

34

Dc scrip t ion
2022-2023 FY 2021-2022FY

Ksirs Ksh s

2022-202i FY 2021-2022FY

Kshs Ksh s



Maktreni County Statc and Public Officcrs Car loan nnd Mortgagc Furrd
Anltual Rcport and Financial Statenrents for tlre year cndcd Junc 30, 2023

Notes To the Financial Statements (Continued)

28. Financial risk management

Thc Fund's activitics expose it tr> a varicq'of financial risks including crcdit and liquidiq, risks and
cffccts of changcs in forcign currcnc)'. Thc Fund's ovcrall risk managcmcnt programmc f<;cuscs
on unpredictabiliq' of changcs in thc busincss environmcnt and seeks to minimise the potential
advcrsc effect of such risks on its performance by, setting acceptable lcvcls of risk. 'I'hc Fund docs
not hcdgc any risks and has in placc policics to cnsure that crcdit is only cxtcnded to cust<;mcrs
rvith an cstablishcd crcdit history.

'fhc Fund's financiaI risk management ob)cctives and policics arc detailcd bclorv:

a) Credit tisk

Thc [:und has exposure to crcdit risk, rvhich is the risk that a counterparty, rvill bc unablc to pay
am()Lrnts in full rvhen due. Crcdit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits rv.ith
banks, as rvcll as tradc and othcr receivables and available -for-salc financial invcstmenrs.
Managcmcnt asscsscs thc crcdit qualitl,of each cust()mer, taking into account its financial position,
past cxpcricnce and othcr factors. Individual risk limits are sct bascd on internal or external
assessment in accordance rvith limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the statcmcnt
of financial position arc net of allorvanccs for doubtful reccivables, estimated by the cntity's
managemcnt based on prior experience and their assessment of the currcnt cconomic
envir<>nmcnt. Thc carrying amolrnt of financial assets rec<>rdcd in the financial statcments
rePrcscnting thc cntiq,'s maximum cxposurc to crcdit risk rvithout taking account <>f the value of
any collatcral obtained is madc up as follorvs:

(NB: Tbe tolals cohmn thoild tie to the individrul elenents ol adit isk didord in tbe entij's slatement of
fnancial position)

At 30 lune 2022

Rcccivablcs From Exchangc
Transactions

Rcccivablcs From Non-Exchange
'Iransactions

Bank Balances

Total
At 30 June 2021

Rcccivablcs From Exchange
Transactions

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

Bank Balances

Total

I
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riptiotr
'l'ottl
lltotrl)t

I{shs
Pa.st tl uc
Ksh s

[rull1
pcrfrrrnring
Kslrs

Inrprrirctl
Kshs

I



Makueni County State and Public Officers Car loan and Nlortgagc Fund
Annual Rcport nnd Financial Statements for thc year endcd June 30,2023

Notes To the Financial Statements (Continued)

Thc customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as thcy continue trading.
'Ihe credit risk associated rvith these rcccivablcs is minimal and the allorvance for uncollcctible
amounts that the entiry has recognised in the flnancial statcments is considered adccluate to cover
any Potential\t irrccovcrable amounts.

The entiq, has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due ftom xxxx

'Ihe board of trustees sers the Fund's crcdit policics and objectives and la1's dorvn parameters

rvithin rvhich thc various aspects of crcdit risk managernent are opcrated.

b) Liquidity risk management

Ultimatc rcsponsibiliq, for liquidiq,risk management rests rvith thc Fund Administrator, rvho has

built an appropriatc liquidiq, ,isk managem"nt framcrvork for thc managcmcnt of thc cntit)''s short,

medium and long-term funding and li<1uidiry managelncnt rcquircmcnts. 'fhe cntiry managcs

liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash florvs.

'Ihe table belorv rcprescnts cash florvs payablc by the Fund undct non-dcrivative financial

liabilities by their remaining contractnal maturitics at the reporting date.'fhc amounts disclosed

in the tablc are the contractual undiscountcd cash florvs. Balanccs due rvithin 12 months cqual

their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant

At 30 June (Current FY)

Trade Pal,ablcs

Cunent Portion of Borrowings

Provisions

Employee Bcncfi t Obligation

Total

At 30 Junc (Comparative FY)

'Iradc Payablcs

Curcnt Portion Of Borrorvings

Provisions

Employee Benefi t Obligation

Total

36

Dcicri p ti on

I.css than 1

ntotrlh

I(s Ir s

llctrvccn l-
3 rrlon ths

Over5
rnon tlts Totrrl

I(shsKshs Kshs



Makucni County State nnd Public Officcrs Car loan and l\{ortgagc Fund
Annual Report and Finaucial Statcnrents for thc year cndcd June 30, 2023

Notes To the Financial Statements (Continued)

c) Markct risk

'fhe board has prrt in placc an intcrnal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faccd by thc
cntity on an ongoing basis, evaluatc and tcst the dcsign and effectivencss of its intcrnal accounting
and operational controls.

IMarket tisk is thc risk arising fron-r changcs in markct prices, such as intercst rate, cquity priccs and
foreign cxchangc rates rvhich rvill affect thc cntit1"5 1,r.,rrn. or the value of its holding of financial
instrumcnts. The objcctive of market risk management is to managc and control market risk
cxposures rvithin acceptable parametcrs, rvhile optimising the rerurn. Overall responsibility for
managing markct risk rcsts rvith thc i\udit and Risk N{anagcment Committce.

'I'he Fund's Financc Department is responsible for the dcvclopmcnt of dctailcd risk managcment
policics (subject to revicrv and approval by Audit and Risk N{anagcment Committcc) and frrr the
day-to-day implcmentation of thosc policies.

'fhere has been no changc to thc cntity's cxposure to market risks or thc manncr in rvhich it
manages and measures thc risk.

Foreign cutrency risk

'l-he entity'has transactional currcncy exposures. Such exposure ariscs through purchases ofgoods
and scrvices that are done in currcncies other than thc local currcncy. Invoices denominated in
foreign currencics are paid after 30 days from thc date of the invoice and conversion at the time
of paymcnt is done using the prcvailing cxchange rate.

'fhe carrying amount of the entity's foreign currency denominated monetary asscts and monetary
liabilitics at the cnd of thc rcporting period are as follows:

'I'be Fmd nanages foreign excbange riskJom fiturc comnercial transacliou and recognised assets and liabilities
b1 prEutingfor expccted sales proaedt ard matching tbe same pith exPected PaJneflts.

At 30 June (Current FY)

Financial Assets

Invcstnrcnts

Cash

Dcbtors/ Receivables

Liabilitics
'fradc And Othcr Payablcs

Borrorvings

Net Foreign Currency Asset/ (Liability)

37
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Mnkuini County State and Public Oflicers Car loan and i\{ortgagc Fund
Annual Rep ort and Financial Statenrents for the ycar ended June 30, 2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Thc follorving table dcmonstrarcs the effcct on the Fund's statemcnt of financial performancc on
applying the scnsitivity for a reasonable possiblc changc in the exchange ratc of thc three main

transaction currencics, rvith all other variables hcld constant. Thc rcverse rvould also occur if the

Kcnya Shilling appreciated rvith all othe r variables held constant.

1t Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a rcsult
of changes in interest rate lcvels. Thc entity's interest rate risk ariscs from bank dcposits. This
exposes the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. 'fhe intercst rate risk exposure arises mainly from
interest rate movements on the F'und's dcposits.

Management of interest rate dsk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that offer
favourable interest rates.

Sensitiuity analysis

The Fund analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity analysis.

This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined ratc shifts. The sensitivity analysis

for interest rate risk assumes that all othcr variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain

constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the prior year. Using the end of
the year figures, the sensitiviry analysis indicates the impact on the statcmcnt of comprehensive
income if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one percentage point as a

decrease/increase of Kshs - Q022: Kshs - ). A rate increase/decrease of 570 would result in a

decrease/increase in profit before tax of I(shs - Q021 - Kshs ).

(Current FY)

101'klluro

USD 10%

(Comparative FY)

llu ro 10%

USD 10(,h

38
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Annual Rcport and Financial Statcments for thc ycar endcd Jrrnc 30,2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

d) Capital risk management,

The objective of the Fund's capital risk management is to safeguard the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure compriscs of thc follorving funds

29. Events after the reporting period

There rvere no material adjusting and non- adiusting events aftcr the reporting period.

30. Ultimate and Holding Entity

'fhe cntity is a County Public Fund established by PFM Act (state the legislation utablishing tbe l;md)
under the Makueni County Asscmbly. Its ultimate parent is the County Governmcnt of Makueni

31. Currency

'fhe financial statcmcnts arc prcsented in I(enya Shillings (IGhs).

Rcvaluation rcserve

Ilevolving fund

-r\ccumulatcd surplus

f'otal funds

1'otal borrorvings

Lcss: cash and bank balanccs

Nct debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents)

Gearing

39
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Annual Ilcp ort and Financial Statements for thc year cnded Junc 30, 2023

20. Annexes

Annex I: Progtess on Follow Up of Prior Year Auditor's Recommendations

'Ihe fottowing is the sumrnary of issucs raised by thc external auditor, and management comments that

rvere providcd to the auditor.

)unc 2024()n-going

The management has

instiruted recovery of
funds deFaultcd by the'

members and lctters done
to each demanding them

to Pay the amount
defaultcd. Copies of
demand letters have been

attached for revierv.
A court case High Court
No.PET /7 /2017 filcd by
1" Assembly 16 members

Vs Salarie s and
Remuration Commission
and the Controller of
Budget and 4 others
rvhich is still active in
Court has prcvented the
mxnagement rrom
instituting rccover)'
mcasures.
I'Iorvcvcr, Hon Francis
Nlutuku since his rc-
election has been repaf ing
his loan prompdy
arvaiting the ruling of the

Court.
Thc management has

initiatcd collection of
rents from various
me mbcrs to reduce thcir
dues I Ion Mary lMrvololo
has committed in rvriting
to enable the same

torvards her loan
rePa),ments.

Thc state ment of
financial position
reflccts a balancc
of l(shs.
159,341,572 in
respect to long
tcrm reccivablc.
Includcs in the
balancc in an
amount of I(shs.
(r5,856,950

relating to
dcfaultcd loans

from thc first
Assembly.
Further, although
thc Asscmbly had
engagcd debt
collcctors and
rvrittcn noticc to
the defaultcrs, thc
loanccs had not
shorvn
commitmcnt to
repay the lmount
outstanding. In
addition, thc loan
not revertcd to
commercial terms
that rvould have

attracted
prcvailing markct
intcrcst ratcs

contrary to scction
19 of the Makueni
Oountl' Asscmb\,
Statc and public
officer Car l-oan

REPORT OF
THE
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and Mortgage
Guidclines.
The statcmcnt of
financial position
and as disclosed
under Notc 12 to
the financial
statements reflects
a balance of I(shs.
159,341,572 in
respect to long
term reccivables
from cxchangc
transactions.
Included in the

balance is an

amount of I(shs.
65,856,9s0
relating to
outstanding
principal loan
balances from the
first Assembly that
has sincc been
dcfaulted. In
addition, a rcvierv
of personal files

revcaled that thc
loans were
advanccd contrary
to the provisions
of the Salarics and
Rcnruneration
Commission's
Circular reference
number
SRC/TS/CGOV
'f/3/16 dated 11

November 2013
as outlined belov:

(a) Car and

mortgage

loans rverc

adr.anced

to

\Ve havc an ongoing

c()urt casc I Iigh Court
No. PllT/7/2017 filcd by

1" Asscmbly 16 membcrs

Vs Salaries and

Remuncrations

Commission and thc
(lontroller of Budgct and

4 othcrs rvhich is still

activc in Court has

prevcntcd tl-rc

managcment from
instituting rccoverlr

measurcs

( )n-goir-ru Jtne 2024

4l
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beneficiari
es and

payable

over a

period of
20 years as

opposed

to 5 years

or before
the end of
the office
term
whichcver
is earl.ier.

Guidance Notes:

(D Use the same refcrence numbers as contained in the external audit report.

(iD Obtain thc "Isstrc/Observation" and "managcme nt comme nts", requircd above, from final

external audit rcport that is signed by l\{anagcme nt.

(iiD Beforc approving the report, discuss the timeframe rvith thc appointed Focal Point pcrsons

within 1'our Fund rcsponsiblc for implementation of each issue.

(r") Indicate the status of "Resolvcd" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to

National 'Ireasuq'.

Fund Managcr/r\ccounting Officcr (ente r title of hcad of

?v3

,{a
It*wrlta7

Datc...,..... lfl"l n
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Annex II: Inter-Fund Confirmation Letter

The Makueni County State and Public Officers Car and Mortgage Fund wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to the fund as at 30'r'June 2023 is

indicatcd in thc tablc below

Amounts Disbursed S as at 30s une 2023

Differences
(KShs)

€)=Q-E)

Amount Received

by peneficiary
Fundl

(KShs) as at 30il

June 2023

Total

@)=(A+B+C)
Inter-

Ministerial
(c)

Recurrent
(A)

Development @)Reference Number Date
Disbursed

60,000,00060,000,00027-Dec-2022 60,000,000F--t22362YM4WY
28,7 56 000Z6 756,00013-Mar-2023 28,756 000F-r23073D CZG
30,968,00030,968,000FT23OSTDVMYZ 27-Mar-2023
25,491,53125,491,53120- une-2023F't23172 ODT
46 300 00046,300,00020- une-2023 46 300 000E-t23172PP5

Total

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated

D",. .. !.:. t.13.!..lcrs....'...'. siN"-. ....f[qn91:......X1.-q.l!hs.

Head of Accountants department of beneficiary Fund:

4J

Colfirmatiol of arnounts rcccived bv Makpeni Countv State and Public Officcrs Car and Mortgage Fund as at 30d'June 2023.

30,968,000

25,491,531.
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Annex III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Q3 Q4Q1 Q2

II
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Annex IV: Reporting on Disastet Managernent Expenditure
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